STATE OF LOUISIANA

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

IN THE MATTER OF: *  Settlement Tracking No.

* SA-AE-24-0071
INDORAMA VENTURES OLEFINS LLC *

* Enforcement Tracking No.
Al #5337 * AE-CN-22-00614

*®
PROCEEDINGS UNDER THE LOUISTIANA  *
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT *  Docket No. 2024-50251-DEQ
LA. R.S. 30:2001, ET SEQ. *

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT

The following Settlement Agreement is hereby agreed to between Indorama Ventures Olefins
LLC (“Respondent™) and the Department of Environmental Quality (“DEQ” or “the Department™),
under authority granted by the Louisiana Environmental Quality Act, La. R.S. 30:2001, et seq. (“the
Act”).
I
Respondent is a limited liability company that owns and/or operates an ethylene/propylene
manufacturing facility located in Westlake, Calcasieu Parish, Louisiana (“the Facility™).
II
On June 7, 2023, the Department issued to Respondent a Consolidated Compliance Order &
Notice of Potential Penalty, Enforcement Tracking No. AE-CN-22-00614 (Exhibit 1).
I
In response to the Consolidated Compliance Order & Notice of Potential Penalty, Respondent

made a timely request for a hearing.



v

Respondent denies it committed any violations or that it is liable for any fines, forfeitures
and/or penalties.

\Y%

Nonetheless, Respondent, without making any admission of liability under state or federal
statute or regulation, agrees to pay, and the Department agrees to accept, a payment in the amount of
THIRTY-THREE THOUSAND EIGHT HUNDRED AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($33,800.00), of
which Two Thousand Three Hundred Eighty-Three and 95/100 Dollars ($2,383.95) represents the
Department’s enforcement costs, in settlement of the claims set forth in this Settlement Agreement,
The total amount of money expended by Respondent on cash payments to the Department as
described above, shall be considered a civil penalty for tax purposes, as required by La. R.S.
30:2050.7(E)(1).

VI

Respondent further agrees that the Department may consider the inspection report(s), permit
record(s), the Consolidated Compliance Order & Notice of Potential Penalty and this Settlement
Agreement for the purpose of determining compliance history in connection with any future
enforcement or permitting action by the Department against Respondent, and in any such action
Respondent shall be estopped from objecting to the above-referenced documents being considered as
proving the violations alleged herein for the sole purpose of determining Respondent's compliance
history.

VII
This Settlement Agreement shall be considered a final order of the Secretary for all purposes,

including, but not limited to, enforcement under La. R.S. 30:2025(G)(2), and Respondent hereby
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waives any right to administrative or judicial review of the terms of this agreement, except such
review as may be required for interpretation of this Settlement Agreement in any action by the
Department to enforce this Settlement Agreement.
VIl
This Settlement Agreement is being made in the interest of settling the state's claims and
avoiding for both parties the expense and cffbrt involved in litigation or an adjudicatory hearing. In
agreeing to the compromise and Settlement Agreement, the Department considered the factors for
issuing civil penalties set forth in La. R.S. 30:2025(E) of the Act.
IX
As required by law, the Department has submitted this Settlement Agreement to the
Louisiana Attorney General for approval or rejection. The Attorney General’s concurrence is
appended to this Settlement Agreement.
X
The Respondent has caused a public notice advertisement to be placed in the official journal
of the parish governing authority in Calcasieu Parish, Louisiana. The advertisement, in form and
wording approved by the Department, announced the availability of this Settlement Agreement for
public view and comment and the opportunity for a public hearing. Respondent has submitted an
original proof-of-publication affidavit and an original public notice to the Department and, as of the
date this Settlement Agreement is executed on behalf of the Department, more than forty-five (45)
days have elapsed since publication of the notice.
XI
Payment is to be made within thirty (30) days from notice of the Secretary's signature. If

payment is not received within that time, this Settlement Agreement is voidable at the option of the
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Department. The Respondent shall provide its tax identification number when submitting payment.
Payments are to be made by check, payable to the Department of Environmental Quality, and mailed
or delivered to the attention of Accountant Administrator, Financial Services Division, Department
of Environmental Quality, Post Office Box 4303, Baton Rouge, Louisiana, 70821-4303. Each
payment shall be accompanied by a completed Settlement Payment Form attached hereto.
X1
In consideration of the above, any claims for penalties are hereby compromised and settled in
accordance with the terms of this Settlement Agreement.
X1
Each undersigned representative of the parties certifies that he or she is fully authorized to
execute this Settlement Agreement on behalf of his or her respective party, and to legally bind such

party to its terms and conditions.
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INDORAMA VENTURES OLEFINS LLC

BY:

(Signature)

(Printed)

TITLE:

THUS DONE AND SIGNED in duplicate original before me this day of
, 20 , at .

NOTARY PUBLIC (ID # )

(stamped or printed)

LOUISIANA DEPARTMENT OF
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
Aurelia S. Giacometto, Secretary

BY:

Jerrie “Jerry” Lang, Assistant Secretary
Office of Environmental Compliance

THUS DONE AND SIGNED in duplicate original before me this day of
, 20 , at Baton Rouge, Louisiana.

NOTARY PUBLIC (ID # )

%ﬁ (stamped or printed)
Approved: \’Y

Jerrie “Jerry” Lang, Assistant Secretary
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E I T S NN

ENFORCEMENT TRACKING NO.

AGENCY INTEREST NO.
5337

303025(::), 30:20802 and 30 2050, 3(3)

FINDINGS OF FACT

L

The Respondent owns' and/or operates the Westlake Ethylene Plant, an ethylene!propylene-.

manufactiring facility (the. Fa,mlity), located at 4300 Highway 108 in Westlake, Calcasicu

Louisiana. The Facility opérates or has operated under the authority of the following Title V' Air Petmits
and Provention of Significant Detetioration (PSD) Permits:

0520Niﬂ7-V5

41292022

7 PSBLA 813(!«13)

42977032

0520-00107-\!‘4

TULTT R
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e the Respondent’s degree of eomphanee
ap[ sermits. While the review is not complete,
"'_'phs II!-’VI of the Findings of Fact portion of this

118
On July 31, 2020, 8 Cl Compressor tripped causing an exceedance of ethylene (9676 pounds} and
propylene (5082 pounds) 4t the Facility. The incident was secured and the I ' ,
(incident T-198042) on August 1, 2020. A representative of the Respondent called hours later to statethat
the calculations wete rerdn and no exceedances occurred. As of June 2, 2023, the Department has not
received a courte

sspondent falled to meet the following notification reporfing require
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-coadition, within 24 houry after
| leaming of the dicharge.
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LAC 33:1.3917.4

Each failute to meet notification reporting requirements is a violation of the associated requircment(s)
listed above and La. RS, 30:2057(A)2).
v,

The Facility reporfed several unauthorized discharges to the atmosphere, via the Single Point of
Contact (SPOC) online incident form, during the timeframe of December 9, 2021 through May 31, 2022,
All of these incidents involved flaring events associated with the facility Flare No, 1 (Main Flare,
EQT0008). On or about May 2, 2022, a file review was coijucted by the Department’s Inspector in
response ta flaring incidents and citizen coniplaints recsived between December 28, 2021 and March 16,

2022; The following incidents received by the Departrnent comcided ‘with an unauthorized/fla

hg event
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The seven (7) day written reports submitted on October 8, 2021 (T-206263), January 5, 2022
(T-206490), February 4, 2022 (T-206930), and December 15, 2021 (T-206263) state that EQT0008 has u
current permitted lirit for 0.000023 pounds per hour and 0,0000496 tons of Benzéne, The seven (7) day
writieni report submitted on March 21, 2022 (T-207704) states that EQT0008 is permitted for 0.001 pounds

per bour of Benzene. A file review of the Title V. Air Permit No, 0520-00107-V4 revealed EQT0008 has
no permitted quantity for Benzene.

The seven (7) day written reports submitted on January 25, 2022 (T-206800), February 4, 2022
(T-206930), and February 11,2022 (T-207045) state that EQTO008 has no cutrent permsitted quantity for
1,3-Butadiene under Alr Permit No, 0520-00107-V4. The seven (7) day written report submitted on
June 6, 2022 (T-208941) States that EQTO008 has no current permitted quantity for 1,3-Butadiene unider
Ait Permit No, 0520-00107-V5,

The subsequént file review revealed the Respondent failed to permit the main flare (EQT0008) for
Benzene and 1,3-Butadiene, The failire to permit the Main Flare (EQT0008) for Benzene and 1,3-
Butadicne is a violation of LAC 33:111501,C.2, La. R 8. 30:2057(AX(1), and La, R.S. 30:2057%(AX2). Bach
unaiithorized release of Benzene and 1,3-Butadiene is a failure to diligently operate and maintain air
pollution control facilities in proper working whenever any emissions are being made which can be
controlled by the facilities and is a violation of 40 CFR 60.11(d), which language has been adopted 4 a
Louisiana regulation in LAC 33:111.3003, Specific Requirement No. 371 of Title V Air Permit No, 0520-
00107-V4, Specific Requirement No. 563 of Title V Air Permit No. 0520-00107-VS, LAC 33:111.905.A,
LAC 33:IL501,C4, La. R:S. 30:2057(A)X1), and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(2). On June 27, 2022, Air Permit
No. 0520-00107-V6 was issued and added permitted limits for Benzene (0.08 pounds per hour, 0.18 tons
per year) and 1,3-Butadiene (0.04 pounds per hour, 0.18 tons per year) to the Main Flare's (EQT0008)
emission rates.

VI,
In addition to the aforementioned citizen complaints, three (3) other citizen complaints were
received regarding flaring at the Facility. These complaints did not coincide with unauthorized discharges
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-bist two (2) of these: complaints, Incideént Nos. T-207357 and T-207515,

TO008) for the period of Devember 28, 2021 through
ndent failed to maintain an exit velocity léss than 400
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é. to maintair anexxtveloclty ofleasﬁ;anmﬁ/ucformm No. 1 (EQT008) is a
violation of 40 CFR. 60,18(cX4) i), which linguage has been adopted as a Louisiana regulation in
LAC 331113003, Specific Requirement No. 104 of Tide V Air Pemmit No. 0520-00107-V4,
LAC 33:L501.C.4, La, RS, 30:2057(AX1) and 30:2057(AX2).

COMPLIANCE ORDER
Based on the foregoing, the Respondent is hereby ordered:
1
To take, immediately upon receipt of this COMPLIANCE ORDER, any and all steps necessary
to meet and maintain compliance with the Act, the Air Quality Regulations, and all applicable permits.
iL
To submit to the Office of Eavironmental Compliance - Single Point of Contact (SPOC), within
hirty (30) days after receipt of this COMPLIANCE ORDER, & written report for the unauthorized
ischarge that occurred on July 31, 2020 (incident T-198042) that includes, but is ot limited to, new

calculauons showing no exceedances occurred, A copy of the report shall also be sent to the Enforcement
Division,

1L

To  submit to the Enforcement Division, within thirty (30) days after receipt of this
COMPLIANCE ORDER, how the higher exit i'elociﬁes, as mentioned in Findings of Fact Paragreph
VI, ensures the flare efficiency as required by 40 CFR 60.18(b),

Iv.

To submit to the Enforcement Division, within thirty (30) days after receipt of this
COMPLIANCE ORDER, a written report that includes a detailed description of the circumstances
surrounding the cited violatiotis and actions taken or to be taken to achieve compliariee with the Order
Portion of this COMPLIANCE ORDER. This report and all other reports o information required to be
submitted to the Enforcement Division by this COMPLIANCE ORDER shall be submitted to:
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Re 'Enfomment Tracking No. AE-CN:22-00614
Agmy Interest No. 5337

THE RESPONDENT SHALL FURTHER BE ON NOTICE THAT:
L
The Respondent has & right to an adjudicatory hearing on a disputed issue of material fact or of
law arising from this COMPLIANCE ORDER. This right may be exercised by filing a written request
with the Secretary no later than thirty (30) days after receipt of this COMPLIANCE ORDER,
IL
The request for an adjudicatory hearing shall specify the provisions of the COMPLIANCE
ORDER o which the beating is tequested and shall briefly describe the basis for the request. This request
should reference the Enforcement Tracking Number and Agency Interest Numbeér, whick are located in
the upper right-hand corner of the first page of this document and should be directed 1o the following;

Department of Environmental Quality

Office of the Secretar

Post Office Box 4302

Baton Rougs, Louisiana 70821-4302

Attn: H lerk, Legal Diviston

Re: Enfomment Tracking No. AE-CN-22-00614
Agency Interest No, 5337

118
‘Upon the Respondent's timely filing a request for a hearing, a hearing on the disputed issue of
‘material fact or of law regarding this COMPLIANCE ORDER may be scheduled by the Secretary of the
Department. The hearing shall be govered by the Act, the Administrative Procedure Act (La. R.S.
49:950, et seq.), and the Division of Administrative Law (DAL) Procedural Rules. The Department may
amend or supplement this COMPLIANCE ORDER prior to the hearing, after providing sufficient notice
and an epportunity for the preparation of a defense for the hearing.
IV,
This COMPLIANCE ORDER shall become a final enforcement action unless the request for
hearing is timely filed. Failure to timely request a hearing constitutes a waiver of the Respondent's right
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puted- issué of material fict or of law under Section 2050,4 of the Act for the

v,
Responident’s fllire 10 request  bearing or o file an appea o the Respondent’s withdravea
aring on:this COMPLIANCE ORDER shall not preclude the Respondent from
dings of facts it any subsequent penalty action addressing the same violation(s), although
is'estopped from objecting to this COMPLIANCE ORDER becoming a permanent part

V1.

‘Civil penalties of not mote than' twenty-seven thousand five hundred dollars ($27,500) for each
day of molauou for the violdtion(s) deseribed herein may be assessed. For violations which occurred on
August 15, 2004, or after, civil penalties of not more than thirty-two thousand five hundred dollars
($32,500) may be assessed for each: day of violation. The Respondent’s failure or refusal to mmply'wlth
this COMPLIANCE ORDER and the provisions herein will subject the Respondent i “possib
enforcement procedures under La. R.S. 30:2025, which could fesult in the assessment of a civil penalty in
an amount of not more than fifty thousand dollars (§50,000) for sach day of continued violation or
noncompliarice,

VIL
For each violation described herein, the Department reserves the right to seek civil penalties in any
manner allowed by law, did nothing herein shall be construed to preclude the right to seek such penalties.

NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY

L
Pursuant to La. R.S. 30:2050.3(B), you are hereby notified that the issuance of a penaity
assessment fs being considered for the violation(s) described herein. Written comments may be filed
regarding the violation(s) and the contemplated penalty. If you elect to submit comments, it is requested

that they be submitted within ten (10) days of receipt of this notice.

IL
Prior to the.issuance of additional appropriate enforcement action(s), you may request a meeting
 with the Department to present any mitigating circumstances concerning the violation(s). If you would
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e contact Enforcemiont. Contact Name at phone number within ten (10)
s NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY,
1,
: artment is reqnimd by La. R.8. 30:2025(E)(3)(a) to consider the gross revenues of the
Respondentandilw monetary benefits of noncompliance to determine whether a penalty will be assessed
and the amount of such penalty. Please forwnrd the Respondent’s most current annual gross revenue
statement along with 8 statement of the monetary benefits of noncompliance for the cited violation(s) to
the above riamed contact person within ten (10) days of receipt of this NOTICE OF POTENTIAL
PENALTY. Include with your statement of monetary benefits the method(s) you utilized to arrive st the
sum. If you assert that uio monetary benefits have been gained, you are to fully justify that statement. If
the Respondent chooses not to submiit the requested most current annual gross revenues statement within:
ten (10) days, it will be viewed by the Department as an admission that the Respondent has the ability to
pay the statutory maximum penalty as outlined in La. R.S. 30:2025.
Iv.
The Department assesses civil penalties based on LAC 33:LSubpartl.Chapter?. To expedite.
closure of this NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY portion, the Respondent may offer a settlement
amount o resolve any claim for civil per alties for the violation(s) described herein. The Respondent may
offer a settlement amount; but the Department is under nio obligation to enter into settlement negotlations,
‘The decision fo proceed with & settlement is at the discretion of the Department. The settlement offer
‘amount imay bé entered ot the attachéd “CONSOLIDATED COMPLIANCE ORDER AND NOTICE
OF POTENTIAL PENALTY REQUEST TO CLOSE” form. The Respondent may submit the
* settlement offer withiti e hundred and elghty (180) days of receipt of this NOTICE OF POTENTIAL
‘PENALTY portion but no later than ninety (90) days of achieving compliance with the COMPLIANCE
‘ORDER portion. ‘The Respondent must include a justification of the offer. DO NOT submit payment of

the offer amount with the form. The Department will review the settlement offer and notify the Respondent
as to whethet the offer is or is not accepted.

like to hm sueh a meetwg. pless

V.
This CONSOLIDATED COMPLIANCE ORDER & NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY
is effective upon receipt,

10
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, 2023,

11
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West Laks Exlylene Piant
4300 Highway 108

Westake 1A
Calcasio

Date Completed | Copy Attached?

gcumms were’ sul:mitted to the Department within 30 days of receipt of the
'm in accordarice with ngtaph It of the “Order” portion of the

{check the app!icob.‘e option)

The Respandent is not Interested in entertng lnm seulemem negotiations with: he .Depanment with the understanding thas the
N B Depanmant has tha fight to asseds dvl! pmaitles baseci on LAC 331, Subpan 1.

' Iin ‘order. to resolve any claim:for civil. pénalties lor ﬂm_vioiattons in ﬂOT!CE*’DF POTENTIAL PENALTY (AE-CN:22-00614}, the
e Respondent is interested In: enteﬂng into settlement negotiaﬂens with the Department and would like to set up 3 meeting to |
© ] discuss settiement prouedures. _

n order to resutve any claim for dv%l penahles for the violations In NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY (AE-CNﬂzz-OOGM}, the

Rupondant Is: Interested in ering Into settlément - negotiations  with - the Depariment and offers to pay.

if include LDEQ enforcement costs and any monetary benefit of non-compliance. The [

it | tilement offer within one hunidred and eighty {180} days of receipt of this NOTICE OF POTENTIAL

INALTY but 10 later than ninety (90) days of dchigving compliance with the COMPLIANCE ORDER portion,
. Monewv component » $

'+ Beneficial Environmental Project {BEF)component (optiunalls $
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MAIL wmnmn DOCl.IMENT ?ﬂ THE ADDRES‘S BELOW

03 Depar j', ent of Environmental Qualitv
, Dfﬁc!ofsnﬁmnmemai Compliance
| Enforcement Division
P.O. Box 4312
Baton aomu?oeu
Attn: Katié lowers

14
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